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Wong YOU"lg Louis (WYL) prefers to be called Cholly.
WYL's father came from Canton, China. Mother was born in
San Francisco.

Father came when he was sixteen years old in 1866. He
first went to Corvallis, Oregon, for two or three years.
Father started working in the store at first, then he
looked for gold.
It took WYL's father about a week to travel from Gilroy
t.oSan Luis Obispo.
Father struck a gold mine --- which got him $400 per ton
of gold in Le Panza.
Father cooked for a mission. Father was at San Miguel.

Father traveled by mule.
Father cooked for the mission for about a year or so.
Then he went down to San Luis. Obispo because of his asthma.

Father went down south as far as San Diego but he remembered
the weather in San Luis Obispo was best for him, so he
settled in San Luis Obispo.
Father landed in San Luis Obispo in 1868. He found a
job in Port San Luis (it was called Port Hartford then).
Father worked for Captain John Hartford as a cook. Father's
name was Wong Oan.

John Hartford gave WYL's father the name Ah Luis or Ah
Louis.
Family us.sd Louis as surname, but always keep "Wong" in
the name.
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Captain John Hartford wanted to build a railroad from
San Luis to Avila and asked Ah Luis to recruit some
Chinese railroad workers to help him.
Santa Maria Railway Company later built a railroad from
San Luis to Arroyo Grande, Santa Maria, later ended at
Los Olivos.
Father had 150 to 160 Chinese laborers working for the
railroad in Port Hartford.
Father had over 300 to 400 laborers who worked for the
building of the railroad from San Luis to Los Olivo£. It
was a narrow gauge.

From 1884 to 1894, the Chinese cut through eight tunnels.
Ah Luis made ten cents per head each day from these
railroad workers.
The railroad workers got paid $1.35 a day.
Chinatown did not come in until the narrow gauge was
buil t. There was not many Chinese families, mostly
bachelors.
Chinese were hired by ranchers as cooks.

A cook in the 19th Century washed clothes, babysat,
beside cooking.
Father built houses to house the Chinese who were out of
work or the ones who worked in town and needed a place to
stay.
Father had a wooden store on the corner of Palm and
Chorro. He provided room and board in the. store.
Father worked as an employment agency.

Father hired a cook to cook in the store in order to
provide meals to the Chinese boarders.
Ah Luis' store sold general merchandise and Chinese herbs.
There was also a storage space for the herbs.
Father acted as a herbalist.
Father had a Chinese clerk who did all the Chinese
writing (prescriptions).

Father's assistant helped to prepare the Chinese drug.
Father had a person who took care of the horse, and he
sometimes took the family to the beach on the horse buggy.
Father had a Chinese working for him in the brick yard.
In 1920, father had eight seed farms and hired Chinese
to farm the land.
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After the completion of Southern Pacific Railroad, a lot
of the Chinese laborers were idle and stayed in San Luis.
They later worked in the brick yards and the seed farms.

Ah Luis Store was built in 1874.
In 1884, the construction of the railroad from Crystal
Bay to San Luis was completen.
The original Ah Luis Store was built in wood.
In order to protect the family, father moved the old wooden
store from where Mee Hing Low ( 1\:, 11' ,r! ) stands today
to across the street.
Father used the bricks from his own brick yard a built the
new Ah Luis Store.

TAPE 1 SIDE B

Ah Luis Store carried canned goods, Chinese black beans,.
salted fish, salted eggs, han dan ( ), rice shipped
in from San Francisco.
The customers to Ah Luis Store were mainly Chinese.

There were some American patients who came for the Chinese
herbs.
WYL was amazed that the Chinese herbalists were never
real doctors but still had such knowledge of Chinese herb
medicines.

Ah Luis caterd mainly to the Chinese. Chinese in San
Luis were tightly knitted together.
Father sold silk handkerchiefs, Chinese shoes with
embroidery, not. only to the Chinese families but also
to the Caucasians as gifts.
That is why the Ah Luis Store later became the gift shop.
WYL did not know why his father started the brick yards,
but he did know that the San Luis courthouse, Round
House, Andrew Hotel, and other buildings, were all built
by the bricks from his father's brick yard.

Some of these brick buildings are still standing and in
use today.
WYL's house, 0350 Lincoln Avenue, is the location where
Ah Luis' brick yard used to be.
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Later, because· of the exhaustion of the clay, t-JYLI s father
moved the brick yard to a new location in between San
Luis Mountain and Bishop Peak.
Ah Luis probably had the first brick yard for about eighteen
to twenty years.

WYL described his visit to the brick yard ..
~NL was born in 1893. When he was eight or nine years old
he would walk to the brick yard to watch Chinese work.
There was not more than ten or fifteen workers in the
brick yard at one time.
The Chinese brick yard workers had a bunk house with a
kitchen, dining hall, and they hired a Chinese cook.
The bunk house was right on the brick yard.
WYL thought the Chinese brick yard workers made not more
than $1.00 or $1.25 a day.

WYL's father would charge a little over a penny for each
brick.
Father ran the brick yard for over twenty years.
Father's seed farms were in full bloom during the Depression,
in 1933.

Dur ing vIor Id Iva.rI, ~VYLI s father grew long white bean in
eight seed farms for the United States Navy.
WYL spent about seven years in the farm as the time
keeper.
In 1913, WYL worked in the theatre while he went to
Cal Poly.
Father had 200 to 250 workers during harvest time.
WYL recruited the workers from the saloon or the pool room
in town.

The workers were of different nationalities -- Japanese,
Portuguese, Chinese, etc.
There were eight seed farms: Camp San Luis Obispo, 4~
miles north of town; Chinese Garden, near the heart of
town; Sun My Load ( .~ vi' tt;} ), Three Miles South; two in Edria ,
Six Miles, Lou My Load ( ~ PI. ~J-) which were about 120
acres.

There were two more seed farms in Santa Maria, in the Oso
Flaco Valley, and the last one in Guadalupe.
Seed farms grew vegetable seeds and flower seeds.
WYL worked mostly in the Edna farm.
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At one time, the Edna farm had over two hundred varieties
of sweet pea.
Father had different foremen -- Mexican, Japanese, Irish,
managing the different farms.
Father was called the Mayor of Chinatown.

Father was the arbiter in Chinatown.
There were no tong disputes in San Luis.
When the official of the Chinese Freemason arrived in town,
the whole town became quiet.
The Chinese name of Chinese Freemason is Gee Kung Tong

-I.- :J.!-~( ti-- l,t\\ '3~ ).

WYL belonged to the local mason, King Daivd Lodge.
WYL joined the Chinese Freemason in Taiwan through his
brother-in-law's introduction. His brother-in-law is the
secretary of the Pacific Area Mason.
WYL is also a member of the San Luis Chinese Freemason
Lodge, the third degree.

TAPE 2 SIDE A

WYL is a member of two lodges of Gee Kung Tong ( ) .
Chinese provisions came to San Luis by ship. They arrived
at Port Hartford, then transferred to the narrow gauge
rail to San Luis, then transferred to the freight wagon
before the turn of the century.
Most Chinese laborers carne from San Francisco to work
in San Luis.
Father never mentioned Los Angeles, Santa Barbara, but
he did talk about San Diego.
Father was a cook in San Diego.

Father was considered the founder of San Luis Chinatown.
Father was highly respected by both the Chinese and the
Caucasians.
WYL thought that his father was remarkable since he was
able to participate in so many projects.

Father was not fluent in English, but knew how to swear
very well. Maybe that is how he was able to get along
with the workmen.
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Abaut the turn af the century, the Chinese papulatian grew
to.800 in San Luis. San Luis Chinatawn was a busy China-
tawn.
WYL daes nat remember any graup trying to.run the Chinese
out of business, except in ane instance.
There were three Chinese laundries in tawn, there was a
Caucasian steam laundry that tried to.run the Chinese ane
out, but it did not work.
Peaple still used the Chinese laundry 'and the steam laundry
went out af business in the end.

Chinese laundries were in different locatians in tawn.
The last Chinese laundry WX~ recalled was aperating
araund 1909.
There were five to.ten men working in the Chinese laundry.
There has been no Chinese laundries in San Luis since 1969.

There were only two Chinese famjlies with children in
San Luis at the turn of the century.
Aside from the Louis family, there was a Gin family across
the street.•
There were two Wong families withaut children. One was
a priest and his wife who managed the Chinese Jass hause.
The Joss hause building was occupied by the J'ass hause
and the Chinese Freemason.

W'iL was afraid to inquire his father abaut the secret
society, thus he daes not know whether his father was a
member or not.
Mast af them were men, warking hard.
\'TI'Lheard so much abaut these Chinese men talking abaut
gaing back to China to.get married, but did not know haw
many actually did go back.
Chinese men repeatly talked about making enough money and
then returning to China to live like a king and queen with
their awn people (Chinese).
Father managed the store until he died.
During the Depression af the 1930's, father last every-
thing in terms af ranching.

Chinese cauld nat rurchase property, so.WYL's father
leased the farmland.
Father managed to purchase the praperty af Ah Luis Stare
be fare the law (Alien Land Act?) was passed.
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Father also owned the property across the street from
Ah Luis Store.
Father sold the brick yard to Ogioli (?) family to use
as a slaughter house.

Father monopolized the brick business since his was the
only one around.
Later, after ~NL's father sold the brick yard, there was
only one brick yard named San Luis Brick Company which was
sold three years ago (in 1979).
Chinese population gradually dropped around 1912, 1914;
and 1916.
The younger Chinese generation moved to the big cities
like San Francisco, Los Angeles, and Sacramento.

Father's brick yard closed down in 1913.
There were not many new businesses in Chinatown for the
Chinese workers from the brick yard. The old establishment,
like the store, the gambling houses, and others, ran for
years and years without change.
One Chinese restaurant is owned by the Gin family.

The restaurant owner did not speak Chinese, the business
catered to Chinese people only.
One of the grandsons of the Gin family ran the candy store.
WYL's definition of a family is a husband, a wife and
children.
There were two Chinese families, plus four or five couples,
and the rest of the Chinese population were all men.
Only when they were invited would WYL and his family go
to the Chinese restaurant.

TAPE 2 SIDE B

The capacity of the Chinese restaurant was twenty to
thirty.
The back of the restaurant was the living quarters of the
Gin family -- it was quite crowded.
The restaurant served Cantonese food, such as Horn Yu Gin
Jue Yok Bian ( i~1..~,~;!~>H~I"X/ 1.f ).
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The restaurant served simple family cooking, there were no
banquet dinners in the early days.
During the Chinese New Year, WYL's father invited all his
Chinese friends to eat at the Ah Luis Store and at Gin's
place. He made it a community affair.
For special occasions, the kitchen was in the wooden
building next door. For family cooking, there was a
small kitchen up st a.i.r s in th.§ store.
Chinese liquor and tofu (!~/','.J) were shipped in from San
Francisco.

-~ ..
Bean sprouts and tofu (£ JM ) were made locally by
Chinese. Underneath the Joss House there were two stores
that sold general foods, some of which were made locally_
WYL counted two other stores.

WYL described the Joss House.
Chinese worship several gods.
WYL I S family had a Shin Hian ( I.t' iii':W, ), an altar whereI ,.;,,_
the family members could go and pray.

Brother had his own god, dark face with three eyes, in
another Joss house.

Mother was kind, soft-spoken person who devoted herself
to all her eight children and never went out. First
and only time WYL's mother went out was when she dressed
in American clothes and went to visit her American lady
friend, Mrs. Casroll, just a half block away from her
house in 1910.
WYL never knew his mother's relatives in San Francisco.

The only relative I'iYLknew was his mother's brother, Lee
Fong Nam.
WYL's parents got married in 1888 or 1889.
Mother passed
Mother's name

away at the age of 54.
• .,." ~k1<. ..lS ..t.t'L ,q;- (SlIver Dove).

,rq

Mother had a Spanish nurse maid.
Father came from Lung On, Oak Gong.
Father was very well-to-do and built a school for the
younger children in China.

Father went back to China in 1933 and was disappointed
to see that the school was not well kept.
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The school was probably built after World War I.
Father might have returned to China three or four times.
Father always visited China alone, except the last time
when he went back to China with his two youngest sons,
Howard and Fred.

Father put up a big banquet for the relatives and friends
in the village -- there were about two thousand people.
The bandits heard that this wealthy man was returning
from Gold Mountain and planned to rob him
Father and brothers heard the news and escaped to Hong
Kong the night of the banquet.

TAPE 3 SIDE A

WYL's father did not prepare to return to the United States
after his last visit to China, so he did not have a
passport to come back.

WYL described father's last visit to China.- WYL's father
decided to leave China for Hong Kong.
Father was well-known in San Luis, so when he needed some
papers to prove. that he was a resident in San Luis, WYL
ob-tained a letter from the Superior Judge and the Governor
Warren to help his father.
WYL and his brothers gathered 1600 affidavits for his
father.
His father waited in Hong Kong for a month or so.

Father came back to the United States -- with a beard.
Father dreamed_ that WYL's mother told him that all the
great people grew beards, so his father decided to grow
his beard. Father still stayed in the store, with the
help of v..TYLand his brothers.
WYL's brother, Fred, retired as a colonel after serving
for twenty years.

WYL helped his father during the day time and worked in
the theatre in the evening.
Father passed away while WYL and his wife were in Chicago
visiting their sister.
Father passed away in 1936.
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Father started thinking about farming to place his workmen
who got out of the railroad work and other construction.
Father started growing potatoes and onions, etc. in
hundreds of acres.
Chinese were not supposed to buy land, so IVYL's father
leased the land.
Also, since the Chinese hoped to make a fortune in the
United States and then return to China, the Chinese did
not buy land.
An acre of land cost about $7 in the old days. Father
did not have much money so what he did was go to the bank
to borrow the money.

Father also went to the butcher and bought the meat with-
out paying for it until harvest time. The butcher trusted
WYL's father.
Everybody in town trusted each other. Everybody knew Ah
Louis.

Father expanded his seed farms to eight: farms and had
connections with some seed companies, such as·Northrop,
King, MinnE!apolis, and seed companies from Los Angeles
and San Francisco.
Father sold the seeds by the hundred of pounds to the
seed companies for them to package.

IVYL was amazed by his father's ability to contact these
various companies. By word of mouth, people came to
Ah Luis for seeds.

Ah Luis also grew seeds for the company from West
Germany and Australia.
If the crops were not good and therefore not enough to
fulfill the orders, father would go to other farms --
sometimes as far as Los Angeles and Santa Monica.
hTYL would go with his father to the different farms to
look for extra seeds, around the turn of the century.
IVYL and his father visited Apablaza Street in Los Angeles
Chinatown. There were many Wongs in Los Angeles Chinatown.

WYL visited Elysian Park, West Lake Park, and Boldwin
Park.
Los Angeles Chinatown's central street was Los Angeles
Street.
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Summary

WYL drove his father from farm to farm and served as an
interpreter for his father.
WYL drove either the horse buggy or the Ford Model T
around Los Angeles.

TAPE 3 SIDE B

When the Union Station was built, Chinese had to move out
of Old Chinatown and New Chinatown was built.
Chinatown was not concentrated in one area. There was a
market area on Central and Third Street.

Eastman Kodak Company proposed to put out $11.5 million to
build a Chinatown wi t.ha wall around it. Chinese refused
the offer.
WYL remembered that at least three or four ga~bling places
existed in San Luis Chinatown.
Gamblers moved from place to place for different games.

Gambling houses were situated in the northwest & the south-
east sides of Palm Street. People would also play cards
at Ah Luis Store. Father would buy the food to feed the
gamblers in the morning.
Gamblers played even in the front room of the store.c,
Gamblers played pa.i gao ( )ft,..-," J'I..) ) and fan tan ( '"r.'·';; ),:\..f:F- •

Only men gambled. The idle working people or the farmers
came for a night to gamble.
When the gamblers played, they mostly drank tea. Some
drank Chinese liquor, but they seldom got drunk.
WYL felt that Chinese knew when to stop when they had
enough to drink.'

Father had someone cook for the gamblers sometimes.
Few of the stores set a room aside especially for gambling.
There was an opium den that WYL remembers.
WYL described the activities in the opium den, the pre-
paration procedures of the opium den operators.

Opium smokers laid on a mat with a block as a pillow.
WYL described the way they smoked.
There were four to six beds in an opium den.
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Summary

There were Caucasian prostitutes operating their business
in Chinatown.
There were very few Chinese women in town.

Once for a great while, there were non-Chinese gambling
with the Chinese.
There were not many other Asians in town. Only Chinese,
Mexicans, Spanish, and Portuguese.
WYL was born in 1893.

WYL and his seven brothers and sisters were all born in the
upstairs of Ah Luis Store.
There were six rooms upstairs: the kitchen, parent's bedroom,
altar, two sets of bedrooms (large room for the younges t
children and the small room for the older children).
American doctor took care of v7YL's mother when she gave birth
to WYL's brothers and sisters.
When WYL was born, there was a midwife.
WYL was amazed by his mother's ability to communicate with
her Spanish speaking maid.
WYl also was amazed by his father's ability to manage the
business with his limited English.

WYL attended grammar school up to the sixth grade.
The principal would not let WYL go to the seventh grade.
There were two grammar schools: Mission School and Court
School. WYL attended the latter.
Court School is a combination of grammar school and high
school, all in a two-story building.

~~L got mad at his principal because he did not want to
attend the summer school the principal ran. Because of
vJYL's refusal, the principal did not promote WYL to high
school.
WYL worked for his father in the farm and never got any
pay.
He quit farming and went to work as a dishwasher for
eight months at the Andrew's Hotel in the heart of the
town.
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WYL was promoted as a second cook in the hotel.

He did
a long
hotel.

not like the new cook, plus the fact that it was
hour job as a cook. WYL quit the job from the
Hotel work is no different from farm work in terms

of the nu~ber of hours involved.
WYL then became a janitor in the theatre.
He did not have "Chinaman's chance" to become a projectionist
in Elms Theatre which was a very nice theatre.
San Luis Obispo was the middle point between San Francisco
and Los Angeles, therefore, they were fortunate to have
road 'shows stop and perform on the theatre stage for a
whole week.
Theatre also showed the silent movies.

In 1913 ~NL started working in the theatre. He worked
in the hotel for eight months.
~NL worked in the farm for seven years.
During World War II, Mary Island Navy Base had a lot of
job openings. The old theatre projectionist left the
job for a new position in the shipyard which paid $11 an
hour •. So.WYL got a chance to b£.come a projectionist
after three days of -training.
It was an ideal job for WYL because he knew it would
enable him to do the work when he got old. WYL, at the
age of 89, is still working in the theatre today.

WYL's curiosity about the projector room was described.
He stood on a chair and peeked in. He accidentally
turned on the machine •. It was a scary experience.

In order to understand more about electrical equipment,
WYL attended Poly Technique College.
WYL was drafted but did not serve in the army because
he worked in the farm at that time.

The vice president of Cal Poly admitted WYL to Cal Poly's
G.I. class.
In the morning, WYL attended the class while in the after-
noon he worked in the theatre.
He walked to school from home everyday.
WYL graduated in 1923 and got a degree in Electrical
Engineering.
There was no one else that could take the projectionist
job except WYL in San Louis at that time. Therefore
he was hired.
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WYL's friend remarked that vIYL "had a white man's job,"
which might have implied that the projectionist job was
a good position and WYL took the good position from the
white man.
WYL got $12 a week as a janitor in the theatre, and $15 a
week as a projectionist.
For seven years, WYL never had a day off.
WYL was married in 1912. His father was not paying WYL
a cent for working in the farm but he was paying all the
bills for 1;'1YLand his wife. WYL decided to find a job
and stand on his own feet.
The theatre had 925 seats and quite often it was full.
It cost 25 to 35 cents to go to the movies.

vIYL had a title as a stage manager who had hiring power.
He hired only enough help to help put on the different
shows. Help included electricians, stage hands, ano
propmen.
WYL did not get much money for being a manager. Sometimes
he would put up the whole show for fifty cents. WYL would
get free help to build up the show. The help got the
thrill of putting up the show in the first place ; Then
the free beer WYL offered them after putting up the show
became a 'treat to them.

WYL was a janitor and a stage manager at the same time
in the early years. After he graduated from college, he
gave up the janitorial job and concentrated on the pro-
jectionist job as well as being a stage manager, for
22 years.
Gradually the theatre paid the stage help a dollar, a
dollar and a half, or two dollars. Later the stage help
got $8.50 to $10.00 (for each show). At the time, WYL's
salary would increase to $85 a week as a projectionist
during the mid 1930's.
During the 1930's, WYL also made posters for the theatre.

WYL had the privilege to give tickets to the stores which
gave WYL window space for advertising the new shows.
By making posters, WYl made an extra $25 to $30 a week.
WYL got about four times what an ordinary grocery clerk
was making.
WYL's father always bragged about WYL's abilty to work
in the theatre.
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WYL's father loved the shows and got into the theatre for
free. Father would give out Chinese candies.

TAPE 4 SIDE B

IVYL also played with the radio. He used a six wire antenna
on the top of the store. The engineer thought WYL was
smart and understood the international code -- WYL was
actually just faking. The engineer from New Jersey offered
TNYL a job working in a television f act.ory ,
As an electrical engineer ,WYL did not accept +he job
because he was getting very good pay in the theatre. He
would not like to give up the projectionist and poster
maker jobs and go to New Jersey for something he was not
familiar with.

WYL was not aware of any other Oriental students at Poly
Technique, except for his sister, Helen, and his brother,
Fred. The three of them were all later selected as the
Alumnus of the Year.
WYL's instructor, Dr. Wilder, was very nice to him. When
he passed away, WYL set up a memorial fund and collected
several thousand dollars.
Dr. Wilder was t.he one who taught t"lYLhow to rewind a motor
from a fractional horse power to a ten horse power motor.
Sometimes it took WYL four days to get the equation for
rewinding the motors.

Dr. Wilder advised him that it was not necessary to do the
dirty work himself because he felt that WYL was capable of
directing other Feople to do the job.
WYL loved the school very much. He graduated from the
Electrical Engineering Department. There were only seventeen
of them in the graduating class. Now there are 3500 gra-
duates every year.
WYl loved to decorate the hall and other places for special
occasions such as the ball.

A professor from the Engineering Department came out with
the idea having the Poly Royal in 1932, fifty years ago.
It entails an open house for everybody.
At the beginning there was no budget. Everyom~ chipped
in a few dollars. WYL decorated the hall. They decided
to select a queen. WYL used a cake box to make a crown
for the queen.
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They did not have girls in Poly Technique, so they selected
a girl from high school and crowned her. From then on 1iJYL
took pictures of the queens every year and enlarged them
and hand colored them.

The first queen's name was Jean Hordon. Her father was
a professor of a university in Sacramento.
Whenever an event came up at -the school, \'V'lLwould help
the school by decorating and taking pictures.
Today there are about 100 thousand visitors to the Poly
Royal week.

In the later years, there were Chinese students attending
Polytechnic from Taiwan and Hong Kong, starting about
thirty years ago.
The Chinese Students Club celebrated the events for about
thirty years.
Chinese students never asked for help. WYL and his wife
thought that they wanted to help the students to break
their fear of coming to this new country and be among
strangers. WYL and his wife wanted to be friendlY to
them and make them feel at ease. Therefore, 'iilYLand his
wife joined them in their meetings and gave them advice,
and helped them in different areas.

On Chinese New Year, the Chinese students put up the banquet
as public relations. From that they thought of the Lion
Dance for the festivities. The complete outfit of the
Lion including the head and gongs, etc. was ordered. WYL
gave $250 to match the funds they had and obtained the
Lion Dance outfit. It was the first outfit. Since then
it was always a hit.

The Chinese students from Fresno, Santa Barbara, Phoenix,
and Colorado, would invite the Poly Chinese students to
perform there.
Today the Chinese students are the owners of three Lion
Dance outfits.
Chinese Students Club is one of the largest student
organizations on campus. Last year they made about
$4000 in the affair.
WYL is on the Board of Directors of the Poly Alumni Asso-
ciation. WYL has been on the Board for about fifteen years.



Interviewee: Wong Young Louis Page: =1~7 _

Contents (cont'd)
4 Side B

Tane: 5 Side A

Time
Segment

Counter
Number

9 359-368

10

11

369-380

381-444

445-452
453-478

479-486

END OF TAPE 4

1

2

3&4

004-010
011-020

021-034

035-039
040-052

053-065

066-107

Summary

WYL goes to the board meetings about. twice a year. He is
the only board member that is Chinese.
In the early days 1i'TYLwas the secretary of the Alumni
Association. He held that position for seven years.

WYL is trying to organize the Chinese Chapter in the Alumni
Association. Three years ago NYL set up a meeting for
thirty Chinese alumni but only ninteen showed up.

WYL is still working on the Chinese Chapter.
There were apout fifteen to twenty Chinese students that
graduate from Polytechnic every year.
Before World War II, there were no Oriental students on
campus. If there were, WYL would not know because he
mingled mostly with the Caucasians.

TAPE 5 SIDE A

Introduction.
WYL's bought the property where the Ah Louis is up to Palm
Street toward City Hall and the courthouse before the law
restricted Chinese from purchasing any property under his
own name.

Father was never declared as an American citizen. The
sentiment against the Chinese was great at that time.
Otherwise, v-JYL'sfather would have become a citizen.
Father was accustomed to the American way.
Father was highly respected.
Father did not engage in any Caucasian gatherings. Although
Caucasians were friendly to \\IYL's father I he was never
invited to their events. But father was never molested.
WYL heard that in Arroyo Grande, Chinese wanted to open
a laundry but was scared away. So there was no Chinese in
Arroyo Grande.

WYL remembers only one instance where Caucasian children
and an old Chinese man had unpleasant exchanges. The
children often teased this old Chinese man who did nothing
but sit around in Chinatown. They would call him "Wey Lei,
l,veyLei," because when the old Chinese man was angry he
would chase the children away and sc;y, "Hey Lei, Wey Lei,
Dai Sei Nei" ( @J 't, \@ 5f~ , iT jtJ 1.'11 ) which means "If
you corne back I will kill you."
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When WYL quit the job in the farm, he handed over the job
to another foreman.
None of WYL's brothers liked the farm work. Actually, WYL
was the only one who took part in the farm work. His
brothers Walter and George helped out in the farm once in
a while for a couple of days during their break from school.

WYL described farm life. He got up at 2:30 or 3:00 a.m.
to feed the stocks, the horses, have breakfast. Then he
worked in the field. WYL could plant the beans or other
crops in very straight long lines. The field was twelve
to fifteen acres.
WYL used the thresher to separate the bean seeds, wheat,
barley, etc. WYL was very good at threshing.

The family farms mainly flower seeds.
WYL also wo rked along with the other workers. When ~NL
was overseeing a group of laborers, he did not work that
much but watched them work and kept track of their work.
The farmers got paid by the day. Sometimes they worked
eight hours, sometimes ten hours.
In the old days, the farmers did not complain about the
long hours because they knew it was hard work. They
worked according to the necessity. Sometimes they worked
in the dark.
Usually there were only three workers in the farm. When
it was harvest season, they would hire more help.

In the lower part of the season the workers would do odd
jobs such as repainting the tools, rewiring the fences,
etc.
It was possible that a common laborer would sit around
to~n waiting for a job when there was no need for farm
help.
Father left WYL to make his own decisions. Maybe because
he was the oldest son -- although he was scolded sometimes.
Father scolded WYL's brothers and sisters quite a bit.
Some of the children were quite radical and did things
that they should not do.
vNL did not mean they were radical in the sense that they
would harm other people. They just did things wrong.

Father let each child choose his or her own vocation.
WliL left the farm and wo rked in the hotel as his first
paying job. Although father was quite well-to-do, WYL
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was too proud to even ask for a nickle. WYL never asked
his father for any money. ,What WYL earned was what he
worked for.
When WYL worked for the hotel and became a second cook,
he always thought the work hours were just as bad a working
in the farm. So he dreamed that he could do something not
heavy periodically when he gets old. So he left the
hotel job.

WYL worked in 1913. Afterwards he worked in the theatre
as a janitor for a few months. Then he became a pro-
jectionist.
WYL also went into the candy and soda fountain business
next to the theatre; He went into th:eGold'Dragon Res-
taurant. It was a candy and soda fountain combined with
Chinese and American food.
After the show, the Gold Dragon would be p~cked with young
people. That was around 1923.

In 1928, I,,/YL'sGold Dragon was very successful. They opened
a new Gold Dragon next to the Obispo Theatre. They
broadened up their ventures. The entire interior was
Oriental. The music came from different places mys-
teriously. lfJYLdesigned them al1.
lfJYLalso designed a special candy tree to handle the
different kinds of candies.
In the Gold Dragon, they served six course dinners for
65 cents and a light lunch for 35 cents.

Stella, WYL's wife, and her brother managed the restaurant.
The new Gold Dragon lasted from 1928 to 1964.
They turned over the restaurant to WYL's brother-in-law who
later sold it out.
WYL also designed a special Dragon Moon gate for, the
restaurant.

TAPE 5 SIDE B

WYL used the name "Gold Dragon Confectaurant" because the
shop was a combination of a confectionary store and a
restaurant.
The decorations were contemporary -- modern, with mirrors.
The room holds about 75 people.
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They used a chandelier with the bamboo pool, and a gong
hung in the middle of the room.
The restaurant had pretty good business. They served as
a meeting place for social clubs like the 20-30 Club.

The restaurant had an average gross income of $14,000 to
$23,000 a year.
The Depression really hit the restaurant hard. IVYL had
to cut the price down in order to carry through. WYL
had the income from the theatre job to help with the
restaurant business although the thea·tre cut IVYLI S salary
during the Depression.
IVYL did not have to support his brothers. Everyone is
independent.
WYL quit the restaurant in 1946 and acquired an old photo
studio. He hired a receptionist to take care of the
business.

The photo business expanded and contracted to make highway
maps with the Highway Commission. They made 4' by 6' maps.
WYL hired a plane to take aerial pictures to make the
aerial maps. WYL described the process of making an
aerial map_
During the years from 1946 to 1949, ~NL made these maps
for the State Highway Commission.

WYL was also running a photo finishing plant which pro-
cessed all the film collected from t.hepharmacy or other
photo finishing station. IVYL hired. one person to collect
the film in the evening and hired another person to
deliver the prints the next morning. WYL was the only
one to provide that service at the time (1946 to 1955).
The Louis Photo Studio was located on Monterey Street
and Chorro Street in the old mission.
WYL rented the studio for not more than $90 a month.
He wasted a lot of profits because of his unfamiliarity
with the business.

The experience from running the restaurant was similar to
running the photo studio.
When WYL gave up the studio in downtown it was because of
the failure of rebuilding the old building. WYL moved the
studio to 350 Lincoln Street.
WYL shot hundreds and hundreds of graduating pictures with
Stella's help. They ran the photo business until four or
five years ago.



Interviewee :_.-...:W~o=n~g~Y=-o:..u=n:..g'---.:L:..o=-u=i_s_ Page: 2_l _

Tape:__~5~S~i=_d~e__B _
Contents (cont'd)

Time Counter
Segment Number

5 178-182

6 183-197

198-217

7 218-232

233-243

8 244-284

285-307

308-321

9 322-330

331-357

10 358-385

386-400

401-415

Summary

It is easier to run the business at home than to fix hours
in the studio.

In the theatre WYL worked one shift, six hours, each night.
Sometimes he would work two or three shifts during the
weekends.
The same company owned the three theatres: Almo, Fremont,
and Obispo. WYL was the chief projectionist so he could
choose the theatre he wanted to work in. The theatres
were owned by the first Far west, then changed to the
National Theatre, General Theatre Corporation, now it
is part of the Mann Theatre chain.

The operation of the projector was always the same except
for some adjustments to the new technology.
WYL ran the pictures for non-profit organizations too.

WYL got acquainted with a taxi driver who knew Mr. Hearst.
William Randolph Hearst, the son of Mr. Hearst, used to
camp in San Simeon. In 1919 there was only one taxi in
town. So William R. Hearst. would take the taxi to the
ranch. Sometimes the taxi driver had to pick up the
provisions and supplies and deliver them to the ranch.
Sometimes WYL w.ould go with the taxi driver. Once he
even held the tape measure for William ~nndolph Hearst
without knowing who he was.
In 1920 Nilliam Randolph Hearst started hiring people to
build the castle. Julian Morgon was the designer of the
castle.

A year later, vJYL got to be friendly with Nr. Hearst.
Mr. Hearst liked \\fYLvery much.
In 1925, Mr. Hearst added a theatre with the capacity of
of 50 people along with large orchestra seats in the
castle. WYL was asked to run the pictures for him.

Mr. Hearst had a mistress, Marion Davis who was a star
of the silent movies. Once in a while, either Mr. Hearst
or Marion would call WYL to show her pictures. Sometimes
it would be two o'clock in the morning.
The taxi driver would take WYL up and get $30 per trip.
WYL would get $30 per showing. He did the showing job
from 1925 to 1933.
Big parties were often held in the castle.
would includ~ President Coolidge, Harding,
and Hollywood stars.

The guests
Roosevelt,
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By 1933, WYL was very busy. Mr. Hearst hired a regular
projectionist who stayed in the castle. He was confined
in the castle for 24 hours -- he had no freedom.
Sometimes WYL would stay in the castle for two or three
days or even for a whole week. He would live like a
king during these stays. Marion Davis, Arthur Brisbane,
a famous writer of Hearst paper, Adela Rogers Saint Johns,
a famous writer, were all there.
WYL stayed in the guest room with the French bay w i.ndow
in the castle.

TAPE 6 SIDE A

Introduction.
T\TYLwas treated like a king. There were seven servants
around him~ It was a stormy night. One servant was
using the clean bath towel to plug up the crakes in the
doorway where the water was coming in. One would take
care of the gas furnace. One took care of the bathroom.
';'lYLand his wife were treated like a king and a queen~

For breakfast, WYL and his wife got imported jam9 and
jelly from India and South America. Beef steak from
Argentina. The local meat was for the hundreds of farm
hands who took care of the cattles around the ranch.
WYL did not see any Orientals working in the castle.
Sometimes he would import some help from Los Angeles.
He would fly them in with his own plane to put on a big
dinner party.
In the late 1920's and 1930's, Mr. Hearst had a B-19 bomber
from World War I which was converted into a passenger
carrier.

WYL heard from Mr. Hearst once in a while. WYL also got
acquainted with Mr. Hearst's son. Mr. Hearst had two
swimming pools. On top of the Roman Pool he had two
tennis courts. His son played tennis there very often.
WYL did not care about the extra money (he made from
showing movies at the castle). Working in the castle
was a great experiepce by itself.
One day Mr. Hearst decided to have a birthday party for
himself. So he had a hardwood floor temporarily covered
with a circus tent. He hired three orchestras to entertain
over 200 guests.
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WYL was waiting to show the pictures to the guests. The
party went on for three nights and four days. WYL did not
have a chance to show the pictures but he did have a
chance to mingle around with the celebrities from Holly-
wood.
Three years after 'dYL graduated from Electrical Engineering
in 1926, WYL was elected the secretary of the Alumni
Association. WYL was the secretary for six years.

WYL was elected on the Board of Directors twelve years
ago. Seven years ago, he was on the Distinguished Alumni
Selection Board along with 4 other members.
~NL's sister, Helen, his brother, Fred, were also selected
as Alumni of the Year.
In 1927 or 1928, WYL was elected as the first president
of Poly Phase Club which was a society of Electrical
Engineering on campus.
Poly Phase was named because of the phase of the motor.

The club members consists of graduates from Poly Technique
Electrical Engineering Department. The club members have
social gatherings and, fund raisers for Dr. Wilder's
Memorial Funds Scholarship, and other scholarships.
Now the general funds go to the State to operate.

WYL also helped with the Chinese Student Club to help
the students feel more at ease with the American society,

WYL and Stella sponsored a Chinese student from Taiwan.
He is now an Assistant Professor in Chemistry at the
Universi ty of Missouri.
To help the young students is what WYL and Stella were
trying to do. So they helped to form the Chinese Students
Association.
The association has grown up to be the largest and most
active students association on campus.

WYL also belonged to the Rotary Club. He has just passed
his 50th year with the club. He is the oldest member
in the club, .both in age as well as in holding member-
ship. WYL also holds the perfect attendance record for
47 years.
WYL was asked to join the club and was the first Chinese
in the Rotary Club.
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Rotary Club had no national distinctions except when they
first originated, only wh i te men could belong to the club.
After a few years, they got away from it: Rotarians are
supposed to be open hearted and understanding. Therefore
there were no objections to have INYL as a member.

Any other Rotary Club are the same. It is international.
There were 20-30 clubs which was attended by members that
ranged between twenty and thirty years old. It was a
night club that met at night. WYL just belonged to the
Rotary Club, the day club.
INYL also belongs to the San Luis Obispo County Historical
Society.
vlYL was the founder of the San Luis Obispo County Historical
Society.

In 1950 the County was celebrating their 100th anniversary.
There was a whole week of celebration. INYL thought of
putting out an exhibit of the county's progress for the
last one hundred years.
The display was very successful.

TAPE 6 SIDE B

INYL put out a table for people to show their interest in
forming the Historical Society during t.he celebration
week. Close to three hundred names were collected.
Things came from allover the County for the exhibit.
The first president was a writ~ of the Tribune (the
local newspaper). She wrote the articles to fire up
people to bring in exhibit items. The exhibit area of
150 feet by 225 feet was filled up with exhibit implements,
utensils, etc.

The meetings for the Historical Society were organized.
Temporary officers were working for about two to three
years.
WYL was asked to be the first president. He said, "I am
no boss. I couldn't command any action," so they elected
Lou Ann Garrett as the first present in 1953. Today the
Society has over six hundred members.
When NYL was the president about ten years ago, the member-
ship doubled to eight hundred members.
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3 067-072 In 1911
073-100 WYL was

Then he
WYL was

4 101-135

5 136-149
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WYL married Stella.
baptized in the Church. First he was Catholic.
became a member of the Christian Church. After
baptized, he was very much into it and wanted to

be a "sky pilot." Then he realized he did not have enough
education and would not be a good preacher. So he shied
away from it.

Two years later WYL went to San Francisco and heard that
the Chinese Methodist Church had a bazaar. ~NLwent and
saw Stella standing behind a fish pond. So WYL asked
Mrs. Hong, a hotel owner in San Francisco, about Stella.
So Mrs. Wong got a hold of a friend of Stella's family,
Through that way WYL got acquainted with Stella.

It was the time after WYL's mother passed away. WYL
accompanied the body to San Francisco to be shipped back
to China. WYL was all broken up so he decided to stay
in San Francisco for two months to relax and bring him-
self "together.
That was the time WYL got acquainted with Stella. It
was okay between both families. So they got married.
WYL and Stella had a big church wedding for about five
hundred people. It was the first Chinese church wedding
in San Luis Obispo.
There was no Chinese banquet. There was a regular dinner.
The church could not take all five hundred guests. So
they had two shifts.
WYL did make a trip to Stella's house to visit the family
and get acquainted with her family before the marriage.
The wedding was strictly Americanized. As far as WYL
was concerned, his father did not even care about the
Chinese fashion. If there were any exchange (in the
Chinese way), WYL would not know about it.

6 185-192 WYL has
193-203 None of

Chinese
204-206 Suellen

END OF TAPE 6
END OF INTERVIEW

a newspaper clipping of the wedding.
the brothers and sisters really went through the
way of marriage and (in choosing brides).
Cheng thanked WYL for being interviewed.
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Chinatown (San Luis Obispo), IB:9-10
businesses in, 2A:lO
decline of, 2A:9-l0
founding of, 2A:3
gambling in, 3B:3-5
population of, 2A:4,6,9

Chinese Freemasons, IB:IO-ll; 2A:6
Chinese New Year, 4B:8-9
Citizenship, 5A:2
Coolidge, Pres. Calvin, SB:IO
Cooks, IA:2,3,4,7,8; 4A:l; 5A:8
Court School, 3B:IO

Bachelors, lA:7j lB:5; 2A:ll
Brick yards, lA:lO; lB:3,4-6; 2A:

8-10
Brisbane, Arthur, SB:ll

Davis, Marion, 5B:lO,11
Depression (economic, 1929-1939),

lB:6; 2A:7; SB:l,2
Discrimination

in education, 3B:lO-11
in employment, 4A:2,10; SA:2
in property ownership, 2A:8
and violence, 5A:3-4

Education
discrimination in, 3B:IO-ll
ethnic ratios in, 4B:4,7,11

Cal Poly Alumni Associat.ion, 4B:
7-9,9-11; 6A:4,7-8

California Polytechnic State Uni-
versity, San Luis Obispo,
lB:7; 4A:5; 4B:3-S,9-l0;
6A:4-6

See also Poly Royal
Casroll, Mrs., 2B:6
Catholic Chur~h, 6B:3
Celebrations and holidays, 4B:8-9
Children

birth of, 3B:9
disciplining of, SA:7

Food,2B:l,2-3

Gambling, 2A:lO
food served during, 3B:3,4-5
games played, 3B:3
among other ethnic groups, 3B:8
people involved in, 3B:4
places for, 3B:3

Garrett, Lou Ann, 6B:2
Gee Kung Tong, lB:lO; 2A:l
Gin family, 2A:6,10-11; 2B:l
Gold Dragon Restaurant, SA:9-ll; 5B:l
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Immigrants and immigration
mode of transportation, 2A:2

Irish Americans, IB:9

Louis, Fred, 2B:9; 3A:4; 4B:3;
6A:5

Louis, George, 5A:3-4
Louis, Howard, 2B:9
Louis, Stella, lB:7; 5A:ll; 5B:5;

6B:3,5
Louis, Walter, 5A:3-4
Louis, Wong Young "Cho11y"

birth of, 1B:5i 3B:8
businesses of

See specific business
as cook, 3B:ll
courtship and marriagr::of, 4A:7;

6B:3,5-6
education of, IB:7; 3A:10-11i

4A:4; 4B:3-5
employment of, IB:7; 3A:5; 5A:

8-9
family farm, work on, IB:7,9;

3A:ll; 3B:ll; 5A:3-7
father of

See Louis, Ah
at Hearst Castle, 5B:8-11;

6A:1-3
hobbies of, 4B:1-2
mother of, lA:l; 2B:6,7-8; 3B:9
organizations involved in, IB:

11; 2A:l; 4B:7,9-11; 6A:4-
11; 6B:1

property owned by, SA:l
religion of, 2B:4-5; 6B:3-4
siblings of, 2B:5,9; 3A:3; 3B:9;

4B:3; 5A:3-4; 5B:2; GB:6
See also individual names

Harding, Pres. Warren G., 5B:10
Hartford, Capt. John, lA:4-5
Hearst, William Randolph, 5A:8-

10,11; 6A:3
Hearst Castle, 5B:8-10,11; 6A:

1-2,3
Herbal medicine

herbs, lA:9,10
patients, IB:2

Housing patterns
among bachelors, lB:5

Japanese Americans, IB:7,9
Joss House, 2A:6; 2B:3,5

Laundry business, 2A:4-5
Lee, Fong Nam, 2B:7
Louis, Ah

businesses of, IB:3,4-6; 2A:
8-9

See also individual businesses
childrearing practices of, 5A:7-8
citizenship of, 5A:2
community standing of, 2A:3; 3A:

3; 5A:2
as cook, lA:2-3,4; 2A:2
courtship and marriage of, 2B:7
death of, 2A:7; 3A:5
emigration from China hy, lA:8
ethnic identity of, 5A:2
farms owned by, lA:lO; IB:6-7;

3A:6-10; 3B:l1; 4A:3
See also Agriculture

health of, lA:3
as herbalist, lA:9-10; 1B:2
language spoken by, 2A:4; 3B:9
move to San Luis Obispo, lA:4
naming of, lA:4
organizations involved in, 2A:7
personality of, 4A:ll
physical appearance of, 3A:4
railroad construction by, lA:6-7
residences of, 1B:4
returns to China by, lA:l; 2B:8,

9-10; 3A:1-4

theater work of, 4A:2-5,6-11;
4B:2-3; 5A:9; 5B:2,6-7,
10,11; 6A:4

values of, 5A:8
wife of

See Louis, Stella
Louis family, lA:5; 2A:6

Louis Photo Studio, 5B:4-S

Maps and map making, 5B:3
Marriages

in China, 2A:7
mate selection patterns in,

6B:5-6
See also Wedding ceremonies

Medical practices, 3B:9
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Mee Hing Low (restaurant), lA:ll
Methodist Church, 6B:4
Mexican Americans, IB:9; 3B:8
Midwives, 3B:9
Mining, lA:2
Mission School, 3B:IO
Morgon, Julian, 5B:8

Obispo Theater, 5A:IO
Occupation patterns, 4A:2

and discrimination, 5A:2
parental influence upon, 5A:8-9

Ogioli family, 2A:8
Opium addicts, 3B:5-6

Photography business, 5B:4-5
Poly Phase Club, 6A:5
Poly Royal, 4B:5-6
population, 2A:4,6,9,ll
Port Hartford

See Port San Luis
Port San Luis, lA:4,6; 2A:2
Portuguese Americans, lB:7; 3B:8
Property ownership

and discrimination, 2A:8
restrictions on, 3A:6; 5A:l

Prostitution, 3B:7

Radios, 4B:1-2
Railroad construction, lA:6,lO,ll;
Recreation, lA:lO
Religious affiliations, 2B:4-5;

6B:3-4
Restaurants

customers of, 5A:9
during Depression, 5B:2
food served in, 2B:1-3; 5A:9
furnishings in, 5B:l
language spoken in, 2A:ll
living quarters in, 2B:l
people involved in, 2A:lO
profitability of, 5B:2
size of, 2B:l
See also individual restaurants

Rooming houses, lA:8,9
Roosevelt, Pres. Franklin D., 5B:lO
Rotary Club, 6A:9-l0

INDEX

St. Johns, Adela Rogers, 5B:ll
San Luis Brick COmpany, 2A:9
San Luis Obispo, Calif.

buildings in, lB:3-4
climate of, lA:4
location of, 4A:2
schools in, 3B:lO-11

San Luis Obispo County centennial,
6A:llj 6B:l

San Luis Obispo County Historical
Society, 6A:IO-ll; 6B:l-2

San Miguel Mission, lA:2
Santa Haria Raihlay Company, lA:6
Social activities, 2B:2; 5B:l
Sojourning, 2A:7
southern Pacific Railroad, lA:lO
Spanish Americans, 3B:8

Theaters, 4A: 2-3,7-11 i· SB:6-7
Tongs, lB:lO
Transportation, 2A:2
Twenty-Thirty Club, 5B:li 6A:IO

Narren, Gov. Earl., 3A:3
Wedding ceremonies, 6B;5
Wilder, D.r, 4B:3-4; 6A:6
Nomen

ratios of, 3B:7
Wong family, 2A:6; 3A:IO
Nong Can

See Louis, A

Values, 5A:8

Union Station, 3B:l


